ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE COMMUNI TY AND REGQ ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 6, 2007
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Anna Faircl ough, Co-Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Co-Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman

Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 60

"An Act relating to and increasing the nunicipal property tax
exenption on residences of <certain seniors and others; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 67

"An Act relating to an optional exenption from nunicipal
property taxes on certain residences of law enforcenent
officers."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 60

SHORT TI TLE: MJUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KOHRI NG NEUMAN, GRUENBERG

01/ 16/ 07 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H CRA, FIN

02/ 06/ 07 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 67

SHORT TI TLE: MUNI PROP TAX EXEMPTI ON FOR POLI CE HOVES

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 6, 2007



SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GRUENBERG, CHENAULT

01/ 16/ 07 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H) CRA, FIN

02/ 06/ 07 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE VI C KOHRI NG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the sponsor HB 60.

JOHN W LLI AVMS, Mayor

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Characterized HB 60 as an unfunded mandat e.

M KE ABBOTT, Assistant Muinici pal Manager

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concern with the unfunded aspect
of the proposal enbodied in HB 60.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor

Di vision of Community Advocacy

Departnent of Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Drew attention to DCCED s fiscal note for
HB 60.

KATHY WASSERVAN

Al aska Muni ci pal League

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 60 and in
support of the intent of HB 67.

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as a joint prime sponsor of HB 67.

ROB HEUN, Chi ef

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 6, 2007



VERNON MARSHALL, Lobbyi st

for Public Safety Enployees Association, Inc.
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CO CHAI R ANNA FAI RCLOUGH cal | ed the House Conmunity and Regi onal
Affairs Standing Conmmittee neeting to order at 8:02 am
Representatives Fairclough, LeDoux, and Neuman were present at
the call to order. Representatives A son and Sal non arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 60- MUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON

8:02: 03 AM

CO CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 60, "An Act relating to and increasing
the nunicipal property tax exenption on residences of certain
seniors and others; and providing for an effective date."

8:03: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VIC KOHRI NG Alaska State Legislature, sponsor,
explained that HB 60 nerely increases the senior and disabled
veteran property tax exenption from the current |[|evel of
$150, 000 to $250, 000. The current exenption was established in
1985. Representati ve Kohring opined that it's tinme to increase
the exenption. He further opined that the proposed $100, 000
increase is a fairly nodest increase, especially when inflation
for the past 20 years is considered. He related concern wth
regard to the inpact of greatly increased taxes based on
assessed val ues and market val ues because the aforenentioned has
caused financi al distress for sonme seniors and disabled
vet er ans. In fact, Representative Kohring relayed that he has
heard lots of concern from seniors and disabled veterans who
can't afford to live in their houses and are forced to nove out
of Al aska. Unfortunately, [sonme seniors and disabl ed veterans]
are being placed in the tough position of choosing whether to
pay for their nortgage or taxes or mnedicine.

8: 05: 22 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 6, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noted that he, too, has received a
tremendous anount of response from seniors on this |legislation
However, he inquired as to the other side of this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG acknowl edged that nmunicipalities don't
like HB 60 because of the fear that the proposed exenption wll
t ake noney away from other prograns. However, he characterized
HB 60 as legislation that allows seniors and disabled veterans
to keep nore of their own noney. Wth regard to the charge that
HB 60 is an unfunded mandate, Representative Kohring noted his
di sagreenent because the nunicipalities have been able to nmake
up the noney lost to the exenption through the increase of
assessed property val ues. Therefore, he opined that [this
pr oposed exenpti on] isn't a maj or fi nanci al hi t on
muni ci palities.

8:07:32 AM

CO CHAIR LEDOUX asked if a senior could end up in a worse
situation with an increase in the value of his/her property and
a larger mll rate on the value of the property beyond the
exenpti on.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG acknow edged that such could happen, but
enphasi zed that's exactly why he wants to increase the anount of
t he exenpti on.

CO CHAIR LEDOUX inquired as to who is going to pay for this.
She inquired as to how one would justify those wealthy
seni ors/ di sabl ed veterans who receive this exenption, when young
famlies face higher property taxes because of the senior and
di sabl ed veteran exenpti on.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG said that one shouldn't automatically
assunme that taxes should increase to make up for this exenption
Perhaps nunicipalities should determne how to beconme nore
efficient, he suggested. He acknow edged that there are sone
weal t hy seniors, although he felt they were the exception.

8:10: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked if the Mat-Su Borough has taken a
position on HB 60.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG replied no, although he assuned that the

Mat - Su  Borough would have concerns. In further response,
Representative Kohring said that he isn't aware of any borough

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 6, 2007



or municipality that has conmented on HB 60. However, he
recalled that the Miunicipality of Anchorage did express concern
with regard to the legislation

8:11:19 AM

CO CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH pointed out that the comittee packet
includes a letter from the Al aska Minicipal League (AM.), which
is in opposition to HB 60 if there is no additional state
f undi ng.

8:11:49 AM

JOHN W LLI AMS, Mayor, Kenai Peninsula Borough, characterized HB
60 as an unfunded mandate. He then reviewed the history of the
seni or exenption, including the end of state support for the
programin 1997. Mayor WIllians said, "From that point forward,
the inflation route, according to our schedule and under our
present exenption, caused that loss in revenue to go from
$131,000 to the present position of $4,382,000." A $250, 000
exenption today would result in a total |loss of revenue to the
[ Kenai Peni nsul a Borough] of $4.25 million and to the state $56
mllion. Wth regard to the notion that [to nake up this |oss
in revenue] boroughs nerely have to increase taxes or the
assessed value, Mayor WIllians pointed out that the assessed
value is mandated by state law to be assessed at 100 percent of
full market val ue. If that's not done, then the state collects
the difference between what isn't assessed and what should be
assessed by renoving funds from the | ocal comunity's
educati onal funding. Therefore, it's not correct to say that
t he $250,000 exenption wouldn't cost the [municipalities] nore
noney, he opi ned.

MAYOR W LLI AMS pointed out that there is no need for any senior
to lose his/her property because the state hardship |aw
specifies that if one can denonstrate a hardship, then taxes
could be reduced to 2 percent of the individual's annual gross
income. The aforenentioned can be incorporated into the | aws of
any nunicipality. Mayor Wllians then informed the committee
that |last year only 2 people applied for hardship in the Mat-Su
Borough while 33 applied in Juneau. Mayor W I Ilians highlighted
that the $4 mllion loss to the Kenai Peninsula Borough will
have to be paid by other taxpayers.

8:17: 56 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 6, 2007



MAYOR W LLI AM5S posed a situation in which there is a rural area
wi thin the borough that has a gravel road 8 mles fromthe fire
depart nent. On that gravel road |live seven senior famlies and
one young famly wth children. The gravel road has to be
mai ntained for all and yet the entire cost of that road and
other services is borne by the only taxpayer on the road, the
young famly. Myor WIllianms related that he is a senior and in
his conversations with seniors, the seniors believe it's unfair
that they can vote for these prograns or services w thout having
to pay for them Therefore, Mayor WIllians opined that it would
only be fair to allow boroughs to decide whether to offer this
proposed exenption. He highlighted that the Kenai Peninsula
Borough has offered a full exenption for seniors and it has
created a hardship on the borough.

8:21: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN opined that there seem to be sone
di screpancies wth regard to how boroughs [inplenent] the
hardship rule. Furthernore, nost seniors don't seemto want to
deal with the paperwork required to apply for such.
Representati ve Neuman then opined that nost seniors spend the
majority of their noney locally and face increases in expenses
with which their income can't keep pace.

MAYOR W LLIAMS said that the formthe state [requires] to apply
for the hardship is a sinple one-page docunent, although he
acknowl edged that nunicipalities may place other requirenents.
Wth regard to the charge that seniors pay taxes in other ways,
he acknowl edged that may be true in some nunicipalities but
pointed out that so does every other citizen. The exenption is
nost unfair, he opined, because seniors who take advantage of a
total exenption don't pay for any service or program Mayor
WIlianms enphasized that he isn't opposed to the exenption, but
rather believes it should be a local option. He then recalled
that the governor's budget includes $43 nmillion in revenue
sharing to help struggling nunicipalities neet the needs of its
| ocal governnent, while the passage of this legislation would
result in a loss of $56 nmillion from those sane rmunicipalities.
Agai n, he encouraged the committee to allow |ocal conmunities to
make t hese deci si ons.

8:26:43 AM
M KE ABBOIT, Assi stant  Muni ci pal Manager, Muni ci pality of

Anchorage, related strong support for the senior and disabled
veteran property tax exenption. However, he expressed concern

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 6, 2007



that it costs nmunicipal taxpayers approximately $20 mllion.
Therefore, the nmunicipality's support for HB 60 would be
conditioned on the inclusion of an appropriate fiscal note. For
Anchorage, approximately $13-%$14 nillion in additional funds
beyond the $20 nmillion the municipality currently expends would
be necessary to inplenment this exenption. M. Abbott nentioned
that in the past there has been discussion of alternatives, such
as a state-funded rebate system whereby seniors could receive a
rebate in the amount of the current exenption or the proposed
expanded exenpti on.

8:29:15 AM

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, D vision of Community Advocacy,
Department of Commerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent, drew
attention to the fiscal note which shows that the increased
exenption would cost [all the] nunicipalities approximately $16

mllion nore than the current exenption for a total cost of $56
mllion statew de.
8:29:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to how many nmunicipalities
woul d be inpacted by this. He then inquired as to the nunber of
exenptions in each municipality and what those would equate to
per househol d.

MR. VAN SANT estimated that the proposal in HB 60 would anobunt
to about $2,500 per househol d. However, he pointed out that
it's an average and thus the range is quite w de.

8:31:13 AM

CO- CHAIR LEDOUX inquired as to how many comunities have the
har dshi p exenpti on

MR. VAN SANT answered that it's available to all nunicipalities.
However, the division doesn't get reports with regard to how
many people apply for the hardship exenption. He said that he
did know that the WMat-Su Borough and the Cty & Borough of
Juneau offer the hardship exenption

MR. ABBOIT said that Anchorage hasn't inplenented the hardship
exenpti on.

8:33:15 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -7- February 6, 2007



KATHY WASSERMAN, Al aska Munici pal League (AM.), related that AWM
and the approximately 30 comunities who inpose property tax
support the senior and disabled veteran tax exenption for those
in need. However, AM. is opposed to HB 60. Under the origina
exenpti on, the revenue |ost due to the exenption was
repl aced/ rei nbursed by the state. That is not the case now as
the property taxpayers, not nunicipalities have to reinburse the
| oss. Ms. Wasserman enphasized that difficulties for making
ends neet is a difficulty for nore than just seniors. In fact,
many young parents and single parents are financially strapped.
These exenptions could also attribute to the "brain drain”
because if one can't afford to raise a fanmly in Al aska perhaps
they may choose to live el sewhere. Ms. Wasserman said, "Every
year the legislature inposes nore and nore exenptions and the
tax burden on those who do not qualify for those exenptions is
growi ng and increasing. She echoed earlier testinony that HB 60
would inpose a total of $56 nillion in lost revenue on the
residents of these 30 nunicipalities. Wile all those that fal

under the exenption would still require the basic services, the
nunber of people left to pay for those services will continue to
fall." Furthernmore, high fuel prices and retirement costs as

well as the lack of revenue sharing result in comunities not
being able to cut costs and becone nore efficient by $56
mllion. Therefore, she suggested following AS 29.45.030(g),

which in part read: "The state shall reinburse a borough or
city, as appropriate, for the real property tax revenues lost to
it by the operation of (e) of this section.”™ The aforenentioned
statute is nentioned in the fiscal notes for HB 60. If the
state feels this exenption is appropriate, then the state should
pay for the unfunded nmandate, she opined. Ms. Wassernman then
suggested anot her sol uti on, which would be to provide
muni ci palities the tools to help all lowincone famlies. For

exanple, the circuit breaker program could be utilized to allow
| ocal communities to establish their own criteria [for
exenptions].

8:37: 32 AM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMVAN i nquired as to how Ms. WAssernman woul d see

a property tax exenption not to exceed a percentage of incone
included in |egislation such as HB 60.

M5. WASSERVAN suggested that there would have to be new
| egislation to all ow such.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN turned to the comrents regarding the young
famlies that face financial difficulties. He then opined that

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 8- February 6, 2007



young famlies have the ability to overconme hardships while
seniors don't have the ability to obtain enploynent to raise
addi tional incone.

M5. WASSERVMAN stressed that a circuit breaker or needs-based
program woul d address those people in need rather than hel ping
peopl e based on age.

8:39: 56 AM

COCHAIR LEDOUX inquired as to the difference between the
circuit breaker and hardshi p prograns.

M5. WASSERMAN said that there may not be nuch difference; these
are prograns that communities could enabl e.

CO CHAIR LEDOUX rel ated her understanding that |ocal comrunities
al ready have the option of adopting the hardship exenption.

M5. WASSERMAN poi nted out that currently the hardship exenption
only needs to kick in after the first $150,000 of assessed val ue
because that amount is already not included [due to the senior
and di sabled veteran exenption]. Therefore, if the [senior and
di sabl ed veteran exenption] was a local option, the circuit
breaker programcould be utilized fromthe begi nning.

[ HB 60 was hel d over. ]

HB 67-MUNI PROP TAX EXEMPTI ON FOR PCLI CE HOVES

8:41:19 AM

CO CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH announced that the final order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO. 67, "An Act relating to an optional
exenption from nmunici pal property taxes on certain residences of
| aw enforcenment officers.”

8:41:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG Al aska State Legislature, a joint
prinme sponsor, explained that this Jlegislation wll assist
nei ghbor hoods that need additional police protection. He opined
that nerely having a police officer and a readily visible police
vehicle in an area deters crine. This is recognized by the
federal governnent and thus it provides loans to police officers
in order to purchase homes in areas that need police protection.
However, t he af orenenti oned hasn' t provi ded sufficient

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 9- February 6, 2007



incentives in a nunber of areas [of the state]. Therefore, HB
67 allows a mnmunicipality to pass an ordinance that wll allow
the proposed tax credit against the [police officer's] nunicipal

property taxes. The ordinance nust designate the area neeting
the eligibility requirenents discussed on page 2 and nust define
the term "law enforcenent officer." He further explained that
t he ampbunt exenpt from taxation nmay not exceed $150 mllion of
the assessed value of the real property, not nore than two
exenptions can be granted at the sane residence, and the parce

must be the primary place of abode. He pointed out that the
conm ttee packet includes letters of support.

8:46: 03 AM

CO- CHAIR LEDQUX inquired as to how nuch an individual with a
$300, 000 house woul d save.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded approxi mately $2, 200.

CO CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether HB 67 would also apply to plain
cl ot hes policeman w thout a marked car.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied vyes, and explained that a
police officer can go on and off detective status. Furt her,
it's helpful to have police whether [visibly] known as such
because that officer can be in the neighborhood to observe and
prevent crinme. Also, it would be admnistratively difficult to
offer the incentive only when the uniformis worn. He related
his personal experience that regardless of whether the police
officer is plain clothes or has an unmarked car, the word gets
out .

8:48:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to who would receive the
exenption when nultiple police officers reside in an area. He
then turned to the situation in rural Alaska in which the
Department of Public Safety often owns the houses for its |aw
enf orcenment . In such a situation who would receive the
exenption, he asked. He then referred to page 1, lines 10-11,
and inquired as to the anmount of exenption when two officers are
eligible for an exenption at the sane residence.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG specified that if nore than one officer
resides in an area, each would be eligible for the exenption
unl ess the nmunicipal ordinance specified otherw se. In further
response to Representative Neuman, Representative G uenberg said

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -10- February 6, 2007



that the |anguage takes into account couples who may both be
police officers. He clarified that the l|egislation specifies
that not nore than two exenptions may be granted per parcel.
Wth regard to the state-owned situation, this proposed
exenption is irrelevant because the state provides the entire
housi ng. This legislation was necessary because AS 29.45.050
requires that prior to a municipality granting a property tax
exenption, the state nust permt it.

8:56:17 AM

ROB HEUN, Chief, Anchorage Police Departnent, related his
support of HB 67, which would provide an incentive for |[|aw
enforcenent officers to nove into neighborhoods where it would
be beneficial to the overall public safety m ssion. He said he
couldn't estimate how many officers would be willing to take
advant age of such an exenpti on.

8:58:14 AM

CO CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH noted her appreciation of the local option
that HB 67 provides. However, she expressed concern with regard
to multiple exenptions on one parcel and at one househol d. She
then inquired as to whether "law enforcenent officer” is the
appropriate language to utilize in statute. She al so requested
further discussion with regard to geographic location of this
exenption and the use of the term "law enforcenment officer”
versus "peace officer." She then expressed interest in a fisca
note for HB 67 regarding the inpact to nunicipalities.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG addressed the fiscal note, and pointed
out that the legislature requires that inpacted state agencies
nmust provide fiscal notes. However, there is no such situation
with nunicipalities, although he said he would be supportive of
such. He recalled that the maximum nunber of officers in
Anchorage would be 10-11, which he felt was very high. \Wen HB
67 was drafted, the term "law enforcenent officer"” was utilized
as it is broader and can be defined by the mnunicipality. Wth
regard to the geographic location, it's possible multiple
officers could reside on the sanme street, he said. He
acknow edged that the nunicipality could designate a geographic
area, although it isn't possible to m cromanage these people.

9:04: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to who decides who receives
this proposed exenption. He then inquired as to a situation in

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -11- February 6, 2007



which the police officer is in a |ease-purchase or rental
agr eenent .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that the intent is for the
ordi nance to specify the geographic area and the definition of

"l aw enforcenent officer.” Any |aw enforcenent officer who
neets the aforenentioned criteria and owns his/her own hone
woul d be eligible. He pointed out that on page 1, line 8, the

legislation refers to ownership of the property not a |ease-
pur chase agreenent.

9:08: 39 AM

CO CHAI R LEDQOUX expressed concern that the "eligible area” could
be defined such that it's an area where [law enforcenent
personnel] are already living in a "nicer area.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that the ordi nance would specify,
by street, the eligible area for the tax exenption. In further
response to Co-Chair LeDoux, Representative Guenberg opined
that the |anguage on page 2 includes ternms of art that are
specifically defined to include areas of high crine.

9:12: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked if the Mat-Su Borough woul d have the
ability to grant a tax waiver to state troopers who already own
property throughout the state.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied no, unless those areas net the
requi renents on page 2. He specified that the legislation isn't
intended to allow specific addresses as a high crinme area.

9:13:40 AM
REPRESENTATI VE OLSON inquired as to how the area of Spenard,
which is a close mx of residential and conmercial properties

woul d be handl ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that the legislation provides a

certain anount of discretion to the nunicipalities. He said
that there my be small pockets that would neet the
requi renents, but this legislation is nmeant to be utilized in
nei ghbor hoods not just one block areas. Moreover, he said he

wasn't sure whether pockets of poverty in a neighborhood woul d
be eligible for the federal prograns specified in the
| egi sl ation. However, nmuch of that detail is left up to the

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -12- February 6, 2007



muni cipality. Wth respect to Spenard, Representative G uenberg
said that he didn't know how it woul d be handl ed.

9:15: 58 AM

CO CHAIR LEDOUX surmsed that the legislation would apply to
boroughs as well as nunicipalities.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified that it would apply to any
[ governnental entity] with taxing authority.

CO CHAIR LEDQUX inquired as to the situation when there is a
city within a borough and the city has a sales tax and no
property tax while the borough has a property tax. In such a
situation, would the city be able to pass an ordinance that
affects the borough's collection of the property tax, she asked.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied no, and specified that AS
29.45.050 deals with the taxing entity that inposes property
t axes.

9:17: 43 AM

VERNON MARSHALL, Lobbyist for the Public Safety Enployees
Association, Inc. (PSEA), pointed out that the PSEA supports HB

67. This legislation provides nmunicipalities the option by
ordi nance for a property tax exenption in order to encourage |aw
enforcement officers to reside in areas of high crine. Thi s
| egi slation provides conmunities a tool. He highlighted the
need to renenber that [living in a high crinme area] inpacts the
famlies of police officers. M. Marshall opined, "If the quid
pro quo is a neighborhood that is safer, the incentive will have

been worth that and rmuch nore.”

9:21: 01 AM

KATHY WASSERMAN, Al aska Municipal League (AM.), related AM.'s
support of the intent of HB 67 and appl auded the optional nature
of this |egislation.

[HB 67 was hel d over. ]

9:22:09 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -13- February 6, 2007



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 9:22 a.m

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -14- February 6, 2007



